
THE VERY REVEREND 

TERENCE S. McDERMOTT, O.P. 

On April 5, 1963, the Very Reverend Terence Stephen McDermott, O.P., 
S.T.M., former Vicar General of the Order and ex-Provincial of the Prov­
ince of St. Joseph, died in New York City after a long illness. 

Father McDermott governed the province for twenty-five years, from 
1931 to 1955. He is the only Dominican in the history of the Order to 
complete six consecutive terms as Provincial. Greatly increased vocations, 
an entirely new province, that of St. Albert the Great, and highly varied 
and extensive apostolic activity were the hallmarks of his provincialate. 
Papal recognition was brought to theological studies in the province when a 
pontifical faculty of theology was established by Pope Pius XII in 1941 at 
the Dominican House of Studies in Washington. In 1950 a new house of 
philosophy was begun at Dover, Massachusetts. Father McDermott encour­
aged the growth of the increasingly prominent Providence College, and 
saw the dedication of five new academic buildings there. During his tenure 
of office, popular schools of theology for the laity were developed and such 
magazines as The Thomist and Thomistic Studies were founded, together 
with Blackfriars, the well-known New York theatrical group. 

The zeal of the former Provincial for home missions was evidenced 
in foundations made at Raleigh, North Carolina, and Columbia and Kings­
tree in South Carolina. He presided over the building or extensive renova­
tion of Dominican priories in New York City; Youngstown, Ohio; Provi­
dence, Rhode Island; Washington, D.C.; New Haven, Conn. ; Springfield, 
Ky. ; Somerset, Ohio; Pleasantville and Hawthorne, New York. 

Father McDermott was born at Thrall, Wright Co., Iowa on March 
14, 1887. He was educated in the Iowa schools, at St. Joseph's near Som­
erset, Ohio, and at the Dominican House of Studies, Washington, D .C. 
He was ordained in the chapel of Caldwell Hall, Catholic University of 
America on June 25, 1913 by Bishop Owen B. Corrigan, Auxiliary of Balti­
more, Md. He taught in the Dominican House of Studies from 1915 to 
1917 and later was an army chaplain during World War I. He was ap­
pointed pastor at Holy Name Church, Kansas City, Mo. and then St. Cath­
erine of Siena, New York. He was elected prior at the House of Studies in 
Washington, D .C. and in 1931 became Provincial . 

Upon the sudden death of the Most ReYerend Emmanuel Suarez, O.P., 



OBJTUARJES 

jr{ July, 1954, Father McDermott became Vicar General of the Order and 
remained in that office until the election of Father (now Cardinal) Michael 
Browne as Master General in April, 1955. 

On April 8, the Very Reverend William D. Marrin, O.P., Provincial, 
sang the Solemn Requiem Mass in St. Vincent Ferrer Church, New York. 
The deacon and subdeacon were the Very Reverend Mariner T. Smith, O.P., 
former Procurator General, and the Reverend Edward A. McDermott, O.P., 
respectively. Attending the Mass were the Most Rev. Philip J. Furlong, 
Auxiliary of New York; Most Rev. John W . Comber, M.M.; and over two 
hundred priests and religious. 

To his sisters, Mrs. Mary Reinhart and Mrs. Kate Knowles, and to 
the Brethren and many friends of this outstanrung Dominican, Dominica11a 
extends its sincerest sympathy. 

THE VERY REVEREND 

EDWARD GREGORY FITZGERALD, O.P. 

After a long and illustrious career, Father Edward G . Fitzgerald, O.P., 
S.T.M., died at Providence Hospital, Washington, D.C., on February 16, 
1963. He had been a priest for almost sixry-five years. 

The eldest of ten children, Father Fitzgerald was born in Washingto111, 
D.C. on August 13, 1875. He attended St. Dominic's parochial school and 
received his high school and college education at St. John's in Washington, 
D.C. Upon entering the Dominican Order, Father Fitzgerald studied at 
St. Rose's Priory, Springfield, Ky. , and St. Joseph's Priory, Somerset, Ohio. 
He was ordained in the old chapel of St. Mary's of the Spring, Columbus, 
Ohio, by Bishop John A. Watterson on April 5, 1898. 

Shortly after his ordination, Father Fitzgerald was sent to srudy at the 
Biblical School in Jerusalem, and on his return to this country, he began to 
teach Scripture at St. Joseph's Priory, Somerset, Ohio. When the new 
Dominican House of Studies in Washington, D.C., was opened in 1905, 
Father . Fitzgerald was assigned to teach Scripture, a position he held until 
1910 when he was elected prior of St. Vincent Ferrer's in New York City. 
It was during the six years that he held this post that he began the con-


